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November 15, 20 1 3

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL
Hon. Kristi Izzo, Secretary
Board of Public Utilities
44 South Clinton Avenue
Trenton, NJ 08625

Re: I/M/O Clean Energy Programs and Budgets for the Fiscal Year 2014
BPU Docket No. EO13050376V

Dear Secretary Izzo:

These comments are filed on behalf of FuelCell Energy, Inc. ("FuelCell") and Ameresco,
Inc. ("A1neresco"). FuelCell and Ameresco have been active participants in the Board's
proceedings devoted to fostering the development and expansion of combined heat and power
("CHP") and fuel cell projects to enhance the State's energy independence and grid resiliency
and efficiency.

We again underscore that it is critical to the success of the State's efforts to expand the
use of CHP/fuel cell technologies that the Clean Energy program be administered in a manner
that provides a high degree of regulatory certainty to the marketplace. To the extent that funds
committed to CHP/fuel cell development are permitted to be redirected to other purposes, an
uncertain regulatory environment is created that will reduce customer participation due to
concerns that "committed" grants will he unavailable when needed. Once customer confidence is
lost, it is quite difficult to regain their trust sufficiently to convince them to pursue another
project. The creation of an uncertain regulatory environment is obviously counter-productive and
will hinder the State's ability to achieve its stated l500l\/IW CHP/fuel cell goal. It will also
adversely affect current efforts to enhance the efficiency and resiliency of our energy
infrastructure and to make critical governmental facilities grid independent.
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Despite our prior comments, the latest revised Clean Energy budget proposes a
substantial $59 million out to the CHP/Fuel Cell program. lt is not clear from the budget Where
these funds are being reallocated to and Whether the Energy Infrastructure Trust, which included
$30 million to fund CHP projects for certain critical governmental entities, has been
discontinued. Nor is it clear Whether and to what extent FEMA funds will be available to till in
these gaps. What is clear is that if only the currently budgeted $33 million were to be budgeted
each year, it would take more than 40 years for the State to achieve its l500MW goal for 2020.
Clearly, adequate funding must be made available, and on a consistent basis. This is particularly
necessary to provide adequate support the State's significant post-Sandy restoration efforts.

We acknowledge that the funds previously budgeted to CHP and fuel cell projects would
not have been exhausted by the projects that are currently in the pipeline for this year. This is
particularly so in light of the fact that the CHP program only recently reopened. We are also
encouraged by staff's stated willingness to pursue the availability of additional funding from
other sources if needed for resiliency-related proj ects.

However, we again urge the Board to assign a priority to CHP/fuel cell funding and to
eschew the usual "use it or lose it" approach to budgeting should funds devoted to CHP and fuel
cell projects be left on the table at the end of a budget year. Whether it is through the pursuit of
alternative funding sources or a Willingness to carry over unused funds to the next budget year,
the Board must assure the marketplace that adequate funding Will be rnade available for qualified
projects when needed. To the extent that it is not clear that such funding will be available,
customers will be unwilling to devote the significant time and resources required to develop
these substantial proj ects.

The Board must make regulatory certainty a priority in establishing the CHP/Fuel Cell
budgets going forward. The money allocated to these projects should not he reallocated to other
purposes as the continued invasion of these budgets Will create a lasting precedent that will
inhibit the State's ability to achieve its l500MW goal, as Well as its post-Sandy efforts to foster a
more resilient, efficient and independent power grid.

We urge the Board to assure that adequate funding remains available at all times for
CHP/Fuel Cell development. \

Steven S. G>'denberg
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